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   Crossroads 
 

 

By Dot Binger 

O n March 7, 1944, Florida State College for Women (FSCW) an-

nounced a quarantine because of dys-

entery. No visitors were allowed on 

campus, and students could not leave 

campus except under very structured 

conditions.  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

    According to my journal from those 

days, we Methodist girls had to miss 

going to church at Trinity, although we 

could go to the Methodist Student 

House. Finally, a journal entry on 

April 7, 1944, read,  

Yippee! Quarantine lifted at 

1:00. CPS boys in tonight at the 

Student House. 

And that April entry is the only doc-

umentation I have of the interaction 

between the FSCW Methodist girls 

and the men who worked at the Ci-

vilian Public Service Camp, located 

in the Apalachicola National Forest.  

The rest is memory. The men, many 

of them of the Brethren faith, were 

conscientious objectors of WWII. 

The public in general was not very 

kind or accepting of them.   

At the Methodist Student House 

(Wesley Foundation), they found ac-

ceptance and opportunities to interact, 

sometimes participate, in one of the 

programs, share a meal, and just be 

human. One vivid memory is of an 

informal discussion group which in-

cluded one or two CPS men, some 

girls, and a couple of soldiers from 

Camp Gordon Johnson. Usually ones 

who could leave the CPS Camp on 

Sunday would come to Sunday School 

at the Student House and then go with 

us to church at Trinity. To my 

knowledge, no one at Trinity ever re-

buffed the men or questioned their 

attendance. The men appeared at ease 

going there with us. 

A website provides information I 

have long since forgotten about CPS 

Camp No. 27, a Public Health Service 

project administered by the Brethren 

Service Committee. The project was 

designed to address 
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human needs, and the men of Camp No. 27 constructed 

and installed sanitary privies to help in eradicating 

hookworm, a scourge in Northwest Florida at that time. 

The camp opened in 1942 in Crestview, but as a result 

of a small group's loud and vigorous objections to 

"unpatriotic termites," the camp was moved to Talla-

hassee in November 1943. The unit closed in December 

1946 (http://civilianpublicservice.org/camps/27/1). 

The men constructed their camp in the forest 

through a tri-party agreement with the Florida State 

Board of Health and the U. S. Forest Service. Thirty-

eight men, some with graduate degrees and some with 

only high school diplomas, were assigned to the camp 

near Tallahassee. The project of building privies ex-

panded to include logging and milling lumber for build-

ing the privies. The men also helped fight forest fires 

and worked on fire prevention. 

The men talked a little about their work, occasional-

ly about their homes and families, but they just seemed 

to enjoy relief from rough living and receiving genuine 

acceptance. A warm smile and hello from Alpharetta 

Leeper, deaconess and director of the Wesley Founda-

tion, made them eager to return. So it was not unex-

pected that once the quarantine was lifted, the first visi-

tors were men from the CPS Camp! 

(ñA Quiet Welcome,ò cont. from p. 2) 

 

By Crossroads Editorial Team 

S ixty-one years ago this April, Trinity United 

Methodist Churchôs ministers, staff, and leaders 

faced a growing challenge:  How does the church 

communicate the many programs, ministries, and 

worship opportunities offered to members? The 

weekly worship bulletin had little space to spare, and 

computers and social media were not yet in use. 

The answer was Volume 1, No. 1 of Tower News, 

an 8 1/4 x 10 Ĳ inch, four-page newsletter. Its first 

editor was Earl A. McIntyre, a journalism profes-

sor at Florida State University and a member of Trin-

ity.  The black and white publication began with no 

written announcement of its beginning, reserving 

every inch of space for articles about Holy Week with 

noon-day services started by the Tallahassee Ministe-

rial Association at the downtown State Theatre, Len-

ten breakfasts at Trinity, the choirôs participation in 

Brahmsôs ñRequiemò at First Presbyterian, Methodist 

men organizing a club, Trinity youthsô Easter play, 

the Boy Scout Troop moving into a new house. The 

issue also included ñThe Pastorôs Study,ò written by 

the Rev. Dr. Glenn James. 

Even more events were headlined in the May   

(cont. on p.  3) 

CPS Camp No. 27, subunit 1, Crestview Florida. Leaving 

Camp Crestview site Nov. 12, 1943  

É 2011 Brethren Historical Library and Archives  

Published with permission 

Trinity Publications Began Telling Churchôs Story 61 Years Ago  

We support and extend the ministry of the Church to 

those persons who conscientiously oppose all war, or any 

particular war, and who therefore refuse to serve in the 

armed forces or to cooperate with systems of military 

conscription. We also support and extend the Churchôs 

ministry to all persons. This includes those who consci-

entiously choose to serve in the armed forces or to accept 

alternative service. When persons choose to serve in the 

armed forces, we support their right to adequate care for 

injuries suffered, and advocate for sufficient resources to 

meet their physical and mental health needs, both during 

and after their service. We are aware that we can become 

guilty both by military action and by conscientious objec-

tion, and that we all are dependent on Godôs forgiveness. 

From The Book of Discipline of The United Methodist 

Church - 2016. Copyright 2016 by The United Methodist 

Publishing House. Used by permission 

http://civilianpublicservice.org/camps/27/1
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issue, but the publication name had been changed to 

Spire News. It reported that Trinity had pledged 

$3,000 toward salary of missionary Richard Milk and a 

scholarship for two boys at an industrial school at Pres-

ton, Oriente, Cuba, and Trinityôs Menôs Club had 60 

charter members.  

The publication changed its name to Trinity Tidings 

in October 1957. Ed Whittlesey became editor in Jan-

uary 1962, in time to report the sudden death of  the 

Rev. Dr. Glenn James, pastor since 1953, on Febru-

ary 25. He and the church were involved in the planning 

and building of a new sanctuary. The last issue of the 

1962 Trinity Tidings, now preserved in the church Her-

itage Room, was published in December of that year 

amid a challenging time of transition. 

Trinity continued to pack its announcements in 

weekly worship bulletins until winter of 1973. Senior 

Minister Edward Norman, while talking with his Bi-

ble study class one evening, discussed plans for the 

churchôs forthcoming sesquicentennial and numerous 

other activities that needed to be communicated.  

ñLetôs start a newspaperò was the response. Volume 

1, No. 1 of Trinity Monthly Tidings, a tabloid-sized 

newspaper, was published with Linda Yates acting as 

editor and Gene Morris as associate editor. Dean 

Bunch served as editor during 1981 and after the year 

off, Yates resumed the task. Other church members 

with journalism and photography skills contributed 

articles and pictures for the publication. The newspaper 

was styled to be as objective as possible, similar to the 

first newsletters of the church, attempting to express 

opinions on issues in quotations by named individuals 

and attributing facts to their  sources. During its 20 

years of publication in this style, the Tidings became a 

historical record of the church.   

In 1990, the Circuit Rider newsletter (a national, 

nondenominational periodical that focuses on the daily 

tasks of ministry or church leadership) awarded the 

Tidings first place among local churches. In December 

1995, the paper changed its size to the smaller original 

format and underwent a transition in production pro-

cess from linotype machines, galley proofs, and huge 

printing pressesðused in print shopsðto that of the 

editorôs computer with digital photos. 

 After 23 years as editor, Yates turned the volunteer 

job over to a new staff member. Joe Sigler was em-

ployed as the churchôs first part-time communications 

director and producer of the Tidings in January 1998.  

He was followed by Leslie Knight in September 1999 

and Rex Adams in October 2004, who became full-

time in 2016. 

Adams has developed the churchôs newsletter into a 

colorful instrument of communication, full of photo-

graphs, information, and church family fellowship. In-

stead of costly mailings, it is primarily circulated online. 

Those members who do not have online access are 

mailed a print copy. 

(Information for this article was obtained from Trinity 

newsletters as stated herein. Bound copies of the publi-

cations may be viewed in Trinityôs Heritage Room.) 
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I n the Original Plan of the City of Tallahassee (1824), the Territory of Florida allocated lot #291 to the 

Methodist Episcopal Church. A rudimentary church 

structure was built on this property, located at the 

southeast corner of Boulevard (currently, Martin Lu-

ther King Blvd.) and McCarty (currently, Park Ave.). 

The property for the initial building on the present 

site on Park and Duval was bought in May 1837. Ac-

cording to the Leon County Deed Book F (p. 315), Wil-

liam and Rachel Maner deeded lots numbering 127, 

128, and 129 NA (North Addition) to the Trustees of the 

Methodist Episcopal Church for $600. That transaction 

gave the Tallahassee Methodist Episcopal Church 135 

feet frontage on McCarty St. and 185 feet frontage on 

Duval St. 

Due to irregularities in the recording of the deeds of 

this 1837 property, it was not until 1840 that all was 

cleared to the satisfaction of the Trustees to proceed to 

build a new church ñup the hillò in the location of our 

present sanctuary. This white stucco Church, a 40 x 60-

foot building, has since been called the ñ1840 Church.ò 

Of note is the wording in the bid for construction of the 

church (Leon Deed Book F, p. 409) , which states that it 

was ñto be similar to the Presbyterian Church.ò In the 

early 1840s, after the new church became a reality, the 

property at the ñbottom of the hillò was gradually sold 

as parcels.                                                                                                                                                                  

In February 1845, this 1840 church was the site for 

the organization of the Florida Methodist Conference.   

Floridaôs statehood took place the next month. In 1859 

a new parsonage was built on McCarty St. (Park Ave.) 

between our Methodist Church and the Presbyterian 

Church, the site of our present-day Glenn Memorial 

Chapel. It was first occupied by the Rev. Jasper K. 

Glover. 

Near the end of the century, the 1840 church build-

ing was razed, and a beautiful red-brick fixture became 

our beloved 1893 church structure at the Tallahasseeôs 

Methodist corner. Although the original building was 

renovated in 1910, the church acquired no additional 

property for some time.   

The Trinity congregation was surprised in Septem-

ber 1924, when the result of a Presbyterian-instigated 

survey of the property-line between our church build-

ing and their church building was announced. The sur-

veyor found that the Methodist parsonage encroached 

on the Presbyterian property by two feet. The settle-

ment between the two churches did not come until 

April 1932, when the Presbyterians sold to Trinity ñfive 

feet along the western borders of Lots 126 and 130ò for 

$375. This eastern 5 x 185-foot area was put into the 

plans for the building of the 1962 church structure, spe-

cifically the ramp and entrance next to Glenn Memorial 

Chapel, and the following long hallway. 

 

By E. Lynn McLarty 

Our Church Property on Duval Street 

Tallahassee Methodist Church, Photo: Church 

Archives 

Overview of Trinity property with North Addition lot 

numbers; overlay: Margaret M. Cooke 

(cont. on p. 5) 
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During these same years, the church roll continued 

to enlarge, and church officials saw the need to consider 

expansion of the facilities. Adjacent to church property 

to the north was property (lot #132) owned by the Alex 

Strauss family. Anticipating building an educational 

building, the church made an offer to purchase this lot 

from Alex and June Strauss. Trinityôs hope for an 

immediate expansion of the facility was dampened 

when, in 1927, the Strausses consented to sell to Trinity 

only the south 10 feet of their land. 

 In 1936 a new parsonage was built on North Adams 

Street and the ñold parsonageò (as it was referred to in 

the Democrat beginning in February, 1937) was used as 

a utility building for church events (including many 

weddings of soldiers) and for Sunday school classes. 

With the purchase of the remaining 75 feet of lot #132 

from Dewitt Everett and Mary Sheppard Wil-

liams in 1945, plans for a long-sought educational 

building began to move forward in earnest and was 

completed in 1949. The old parsonage was torn down in 

1953, leaving a grassy courtyard in its place until our 

1962 sanctuary was built.   

(cont. on p. 6) 
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Making History: Latest News from the Historical Society 

Trinity Methodist Church and parsonage, and 

First Presbyterian Church, 1930s; view from SW 

corner of Park Avenue and Duval Street 

Florida State Archives, Florida Memory Project 

#NO42213 

Park Avenue entrance to Trinity UMC on the east  

adjacent to First Presbyterian Church; 2018 Photo: 

E. Lynn McLarty   

Exploring Options for Historic Sign  

T he historic sign at the front of the church, Park Avenue sidewalk, is in poor condition. Trinity's 

Historical Society is looking into repairing the sign 

or acquiring one of the large blue historic state 

markers with historic information about Trinity.  

The state marker would be much more durable. 

Due to the state agency's scheduling the process 

will take about a year. 

Welcoming Our Newest Officer 

T he Historical Society  welcomed its newest of-ficer in January, Mary Margaret Rogers. She 

has served on HSôs ad hoc membership committee 

and represents the broader membership as Member-

at-Large. 

She brings an enthusiastic volunteer spirit to the 

Society and expertise in and knowledge of Trinityôs 

historic stories and events. She is a long-time mem-

ber of Trinity.  
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In 1948 Trinity looked to provide a home for the 

associate minister and was able to purchase the one-

story home on the west 85 feet of lot #136 from Mar-

garet M. Datson for $13,282. Even though it was in-

tended for the associate minister, the home soon be-

came the residence of those who would serve as direc-

tor of Christian education.  When other properties in 

Tallahassee were purchased for the home of the associ-

ate ministers, this residence on Call St. became the Ter-

rell House, a temporary service center for families of 

prisoners incarcerated in the Tallahassee Federal Pris-

on. The house was moved in 1987, making way for a 

much-needed parking lot for Trinity membersô use.  

At this time there was only one lot that interrupted 

Trinityôs ownership of all the property along Duval St. 

from Park Ave. to Call St. Lot #133 was owned by the 

Gabriel Capelouto family, and it consisted of a two-

story home and a garage apartment at the rear. In April 

1956 this property was purchased for $28,000. The 

home was torn down for parishioner parking, and the 

garage apartment was used as Trinityôs Boy Scout hut.  

In 1957 the southwest corner of Duval and Call 

Streets caught the eye of our church officials who 

deemed it a wonderful opportunity for more  parking.  

From June 1957 to July 1958, separate contracts with 

George R. and Jean B. Winchester and Ralph E. 

and  Gladys S. Proctor; Kate 

Inman; and C. Asbury and 

Corinne H. Gridley were negoti-

ated to purchase their three lots 

(nos. 215, 218, and 219, respective-

ly) along the west side of Duval St. 

Each lot, with an 85-foot Duval St. 

frontage, had a 170-foot depth 

westward. These became a large 

parking lot that was paved in 1959. 

In a rental agreement with Leon 

County in 1987, Trinity began to 

share this parking area with pa-

trons when the library was com-

pleted in 1991.  

   The east 45 feet of lot #136 was 

the only remaining property not 

owned by Trinity on the western 

one-half of this city block. It was 

not until December 1994 that the 

church bought that final segment 

from the William D. Wood IV estate for $75,000. 

After removal of the home from the property, this new 

addition was soon fenced and became the protected 

parking of Trinityôs vans and buses. Today this property 

is easily identified from the residual concrete wall and 

steps which led from the old house to the sidewalk. 

Trinity can be very proud of those individuals in po-

sitions of authority who have had the churchôs long-

range interest in their hearts through the years. They 

were very business-oriented persons who had a keen 

vision for expanding the mission of our downtown 

church, letting no financial challenge daunt their en-

thusiasm. Today, Trinity owns 101,475 square feet, or 

2.33 acres of land along the Duval St. corridor between 

Park Ave. and Call St.   

Other Information Resources 

Official Records. Clerk of Circuit Court, Leon County, 

Fl. 

Yates, L. (Ed.). 1999. Trinity United Methodist Church: 

Tallahassee's First Church 1824-1999, Tallahassee, FL:  

Trinity United Methodist Church. 

Menendez, E. (1983, March). ñHow Trinity Acquired Its 

Property,ò Trinityôs Monthly Tidings. 

 

Terrell House at SE corner of Call Street and Duval Street. Note the William 

D. Wood home to the east (left) in the background; photo: Trinity Monthly 

Tidings, January, 1987 

Look for upcoming information on Trinityôs 200th Anniversary Celebration to be observed in 2024. 

Plans are underway for this important event! 

(ñOur Church Property,ò cont.  from  p. 5) 
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By Linda Yates 
 

A merican women in the 19th century had no politi-cal, economic, or property rights. This was cause 

for concern for Margaret S. Fuller, who published a 

book in 1845, Woman in the Nineteenth Century. In it 

she pointed out that the problems with the relationship 

between man and wife at that time derived from the 

belief that women are inferiors, equal to children but 

not equal to men. She declared a new awakening for 

America in which women were recognizing their need 

for expansion and self-dependence to help them act on 

their love of humanity (Fuller, 1845). 

 They wanted intellectual and religious freedom 

equal to menôs, but change was slow to come. 

On March 23, 1869, eight brave women of the Meth-

odist Episcopal Church, in spite of a rainstorm, made 

their way to Tremont Street Church in Boston to form 

an organization for mission work. They had their hus-

bandsô permissions to find ways to help the millions of 

people around the world who had no medical care, es-

pecially women and children who lived in poverty and 

ignorance. On March 30, another rainy day, a second 

meeting brought 26 women together to adopt a consti-

tution for the Womanôs Foreign Missionary Society 

(Hunter, 1981).  

Only six months later, its officers, including 44 vice 

presidents, many of whom were wives of bishops, went 

to Bedford Street Church in New York to send off two 

women as missionaries to India: Isabella Thoburn, 

who was to start a school (Isabella Thoburn College), 

and Clara Swain, who was to found the first women's 

hospital and medical school in Asia (Butler, 1980).  

The 19th century became the missionary century.  

Other Methodist conferences created additional units 

of the Womanôs Foreign Missionary Society, and they 

in turn formed auxiliary groups in local churches. 

Women of the Methodist Episcopal Church, South, 

were given authority during the General Conference of 

1878 to organize and raise money for missionary pur-

poses. Organization of the Womanôs Foreign Mission-

ary Society of the Florida Conference Methodist Epis-

copal Church, South, was formally accomplished on 

April 27, 1881. By the end of the first year, 17 local 

church societies had been formed with a total of 454 

members and four juvenile societies.  

Trinity Methodist Episcopal Church, South began a 

womanôs organization in January 1882 at the request of 

the Reverend E.L.T. Blake, who served as minister 

in Tallahassee from 1878 to 1881. By the end of the 

year, 29 members had raised $23.10 for missions. Ac-

cording to ñResearch Notesò (unpublished) by Mary 

Lamar Davis, Cornelia S. Bryan served as first 

president. A Junior Home Missionary Society was orga-

nized on February 28, 1907. Called ñBright Jewels,ò the 

society of children collected small amounts of money 

for missions by using a ñmite boxò (History 1882-1972, 

n.d.). 

Juanita Forbes of Trinity, who was active in wom-

enôs work, compiled a scrapbook of historical infor-

mation about the Womanôs Foreign Missionary Society 

and its name changes over the years.  

Writing on the 15th anniversary of the Guild, Forbes 

told the story of the beginning of the Missionary Socie-

ty in 1869 in Boston; the Womanôs Home Missionary 

Society, which had begun in 1880 over the plight of 

Black women and children recently emancipated from 

slavery; and the Methodist Protestant Church, a third 

branch of Methodism, whose foreign missionary socie-

ty was formed in Pittsburgh in 1879. The intervening 

136 Years and Five Name-Changes: Women of Trinity Are Still  

Dedicated to Missions 

Some of the charter members of the Trinity Womanôs 

Foreign Missionary Society are pictured as they began their 

first year in January 1882. From left to right are Jessie Blake, 

Mary C. Woodward, Susan E. Vanbrunt, Sallie R. Saxon, 

Fannie S. Byrd, and in front, Emily Gilmore. 

(cont. on p. 8) 


